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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Members of Nerofix Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited (“the
Company'), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, Including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director's report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report therean,

Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance canclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally
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accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate
accounting recards in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial contraols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually er in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and malntain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reqguired
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to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's repert. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficlencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with tham all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a3} We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinien, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated In
the paragraph (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{a);

{c)} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes In Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a directer in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;
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(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company lor the year ended March 31, 2024;

(Y With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Repart in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Campany has disclosed the Impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer note 31 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief and
as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or Kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief and
as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries') ar provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) centain any
material misstatement.

Neo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature
iz not enabled for direct changes te data when using certain access rights, as
described in note 41 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
in respact of the accounting software.

ForSREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

e

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 24110759BKEBAF4282

Place of Signature: Mumbal
“’Date: May 02, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements” of our report of even date on the financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited

Re: Nerofix Private Limited ("the Company'’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

() (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Eguipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles

(b)

(c)

(d)

(=)

(i) (=)

(b)

{iii}

assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a planned programme of verifying them once in three years,
which is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Mo material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the Immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings Initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thersunder.

The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
Inventory were not noticed in respect of such physical verification.

As disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
warking capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institution
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the
guarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such financial Institution are in
agreement with the audited books of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iiiXa), (b), (c), (d), (e and () of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report en clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act related to the manufacture of adhesives and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (a) The Company Is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute,

(vill)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 &s Income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix) (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

{c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

{d) The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the year hence, the
requirement to report en clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x){e) of the Order |5 not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{x){a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xXa) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /

fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xi) (a)

(b)

{c)

(xii}

(xiii)

Mo material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed
by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 aof the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xlii)
of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is

commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though It is not
required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Act.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the

(xv)

period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xviXa) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financlal or Housing Finance activities.

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi){b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xviXc) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

{xvil)

Cxvili)

clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowlaedge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit repoart that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liablilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Act in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirements to report on clause (xx) (a)
and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBCA&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reqistration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 24110759BKEBAF4282

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 02, 2024
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Annexure 2 = To the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of
Nerofix Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nerofix
Private Limited ("the Company”) as of March 21, 2024 |n conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financlal Contrals

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI")]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility Is to express an opinion an the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements
A company's internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference te financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinien, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial contrals with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBCE&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

V@M

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 24110759BKEBAF4282

Place of Signature: Mumbai
\/Date: May 02, 2024
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2024
Amount bn Lakhs

Nt Year Ended Yeur Emded
i 31 Mareh, 2024 31 March, 2013
Ineame
Revenue from Operations b 13280 50 1468039
Other Income 24 .52 5]
Total Income 1328202 L 6RA0
Expenses
Cost of Maerinls Consumed 25 10,185.11 11,567 40
(Chusges in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progness 26 (2B.37) (31.63)
Employes Henefits Expense n HE1T THA00
Finune Costs 28 205,60 212,98
[epreciasion end Amortisstish Expenses ] nn 330.18
(Hher Expenses n _ lLeE3s 1,812 88
Tutal Expenses 13.556.02 14.676.81
ProfitLass) Before Tux {274.00) 10
Tas Expense
Current Tax . 137
Drefierred Tax I .5 (157)
Adpustment of b relatimg o carlier periods (1.57) .
Total Tax Expense R |-
Irufin Loss) Tor the period {274.009 1
(hher Comprehensive Income
(1) Resmussuremint of Defined Henefit Linbility 2Ly {3.89)
Total Comprehensive Income for the perioi (25L.73) 620
Enrnings prer Equity Share:
Pasic and Dilused (137 005
Maierial Aceounting Policles Ll
The nuotes refietred 1o sbove form an integrml pirt of these Financial Stlemenls
As per our attached report of even date For and an behall of Board of Ditectos of Nerofis Privae Limited
ForSRB C& COLLP }ﬁﬁli
Chartgred Accountants Dnnector Thrector
ICAl Firm Registmtion Mo 334G8IEFI00003 DHN OR1 13481 DIM DB245250
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED J18T MARCH, 2024
Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
ProfitfiLoss) Before Tax {274,007 009
Adjustmems [or:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses manz 330018
Finanee Costs 205,60 212.98
Remessurement of Defined Benefit Lubility 2127 -
Provision for Doubtfil debis 4730 1942
Dperating Profit Before Working Capital Changes Errkl 543,07
Waorking Capital Adjustments
Adjustment for {inereass) ( decrease in operating assets:
[nvenlories 293 18205
Trude Receivihles 805,83 (757.30)
[hher Current Assets [14.19) 6,91
Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in operating fbilies;
Trade pavables and Other liabulities 14579 33947

126274 35459
ezt Taxes Paid {net) {215} (5.66)
Mel cash fMow from / (used in) operating activitles 1,260.5% 34893
Cush Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Properry, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assel (K372 (83.02)
iind (her Intangible Assels
Nel cash Mows Trom / {used in) investing nctivities (83.73) (83.02)
Cush Flow From Financing Activities
Procecds/{ Nepayment) of long term horrowings 1,500.00 -
Repmyment of long-term Borawings (625 00] (625,00)
Procecds!| Repuyment ) of Shor term bomowsngs (Net) (1,500,00) 65743
Interest Paid (206 18 (209.10)
Net cush Mows from / {used in) financing sctivities {831.18) {17667}
Net Inerease ( (Decrense) in Cush and Cash Equivalents 4569 8024
sl and Cash Equivalents as the beginning of the year 8944 125
Crsh and Cash Equivalents a5 the eod of the year 435.1% B9.4%
Civsh nnd Cush Equivalents st the end of the vear, the
enmponents belng:
Cish o Hard (336 0,33
Banks Balonces 43482 59,16

43518 5949

Nel Increase / | Decrense) as distloved abuove 435,18 g §9.49

Moles:

{1} Figures i hrackets re outllows/deductions

(111 The ubove Cash Flow Smtement is prepared under the “Indirect Method™ s set out in the Indion

Accimting Standards (nd AS-T)— Smtement of Cath Flows.

As per our attached report of even dote For and oo behalf of Board of Dicectors of Negefix Pri Larmited

FurSRBC & COLLP Prashant "al
Churtered Aceountants Director
ICAl Firm Regestration Mo, 324982EE300003 DI OR1 15481 DN 08245250

per Ankl lohanpuira Rul !ﬁﬁ':m-nlln
Parner Company. Secretary
Membership No, 110759 & e ACS 20207
* MUMBAL |
Mumbii . ¢ Mumbsi
N May 02, 202

LMT.- fi2, 1024



NEROFIX PRIVATE LINMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

- ity Share Capital
Amount in Laldis
Number of Shares
Halance as ot 01 April, 2022 20,000,000 2,000
Issued during the penod - b
Halance as at 31 March, 2023 IR 2 0l
Issued during the period - s
Balance ns nt 31 March, 2024 20,0004, 0060 2000
- ouity Amount in Lakhs
Particuliurs Retained Enrnings Tutal
Bailanee s at U1 April, 2023 (B20,60) (K20 60)
Profit{Loss) for the period (274,00) (274001
Uther Comprehensive Incame{ Experise] 2127 21.27
Towl Comprehensive Income for the period {1073.32) (1,073.32)
Bailunce ss ot 35 Murch, 2024 (1,073.32) [1073.32)
Ammount in Lakhs
Particulars Retained Earnings Tuotal
Balance as a1 1 April, 2022 (526, B0) | B26.30)
Profit/{1oss) for the period 10,09 0.0
Other Camprehensive Ineome {3,891 (3.89)
Total Camprehensive Income for the period (R20.60) (B20.60)
Bulance as ut 31 Mareh, 2023 (B200.60) (B20.600)

1he tistes referred to above form an intepral part of these Financial Statements

Ay per i siched reporn of even date For and on behnif of Boord of Directors of Nerofix
FurSRBC & COLLF m-f
Chertered Accourtants Dhrectar

Farm Registration No. 124982EEIN0003 DIM (8115481 DTN DEI43250

s
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Company Secrciary
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per Anil Jobunputra
Partrer
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL, 2023 TO 31 MARCH, 2024

Note 1:

Corporate Information

Nerofix Private Limited (the 'Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act. The Company's has been incarporated on 17 July, 2019. The registered office of the
Company Is located at Arinant Aura, B-202, Plot No.D13/1, TTC Industrial Area, Turbhe (MIDC), Thane Belapur Road,
Navi Mumbai, Maharashtra-400705. The Company is princlpally engaged in the manufacturing of Adhesives,
Construction Chemicals and Sealants.

Kansal Nerolac Paints Limited is holding company of Nerofix Private Limited and is based and listed in India. Financial
statements of Kansal Nerolac Private Limited are avallable In public domaln.

Basis of Preparation
Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accardance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the "Act')
and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time.

Details of the Company's material Accounting Policies are Included in Note 2.1,
Functional and Presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which Is also the Company’s functional currency.

Basis of measurament

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the histarical cost basis except for financial assets and llabilities
which are measurad at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgements

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
llabllities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recagnised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, ar in the period of the
revision and future periods If the revision affects both current and future perieds.

Business combinations and Intangible Assets

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the
identifiable intangible assets and centingent consideration to be fair valued |n order to ascertain the net fair value of
identifiable assets, lizbilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Significant estimates are required to be made In
determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These valuatlons are conducted by
independent valuation experts.

Critical Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements,

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defined benefit obligation.
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated In India, the management considers the Interest rates
of government bands in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL, 2023 TO 31 MARCH, 2024

1

Contingences and Commitments

In the normal course of business, cantingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against the
Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of erystallising or are very difficult to guantify reliably,
we freat them as contingent liabilities, Such liabllities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the
financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, we do
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our financlal position or profitability,

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment
As described In Note 2.1(ib(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant

and equipment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables

The Company makes Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade and other receivables. The identification of impairment allowance requires use of judgments and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will Impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivahles and impairment allowances in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for Inventaries

Management reviews the Inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying
value of the aged Inventory ftems with the respective net realizabie value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an
allowance is reguired to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management s
satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving Inventories has been made in the financial
statements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the falr values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance shest cannot be measured
based on guoted prices in active markets, their falr value is measured using valuation technigues, including the
discounted cash flow model, which invalve various judgements and assumptions.

Defined Benefit Plans

The costs and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long-term employee benefits are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in future. These include the determination of appropriate discount rate, salary escalation
rate, expected rate of raturn on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, defined benefit plans are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

Note 2.1;

Material Accounting Policies
I} Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Schedule Il to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-
current. i

(a) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's
normal operating cycle;

(i) it Is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,
(iil) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) It Is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date,

(b All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-cutrent,

(c) A liability shall be classifled as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
() it Is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
(i) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(iil) it Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the [lability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classificatlon.

(d All liabllities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.
ii) Operating Cycle

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation In cash or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

iii) Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any.

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates
and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The initial estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is
included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in-
progress. Item of Capital Work-in-progress is carried at cost using the principles of valuation of
item of property, plant and equipment till it is ready for use, the manner in wﬁj_'ch'_—i_'_'_m_é‘f\‘tigd by
management. Gy \1'

Wit | i
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

{b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
assoclated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

{c) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a
systematic basis over Its useful life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line
method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern In which the
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on
internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives of the assets are
appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, If
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodled In the asset, the method Is changed to reflect the changed
pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance
with Ind AS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that Is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item s depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss unless
it Is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows:

Useful Lives Useful Lives
(in years) (i years)
Asset Class - as estimated
- as per Companies bur s
Act, 2013 ¥
Company
Bulldings 30-60 30-60
Plant and Equipments 10-20 10-20
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Office Equipments 5 5
Computers 3-6 3-6

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use (disposed off).

(d) Disposal

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment |s derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The galn or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment Is included in
statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.




MEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT 315T MARCH, 2024

|¥) Lease

The Company assesses at cantract inception whether a contract |%, ar contains, @ lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the fight to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessea

The Company applies a single recognition and measurzmant approach for all leases, except for shart-term
leases and leases of low-value asset. The Campany recognises lease [labilities to make [ease payments and
riaht-of-use asset representing the right to use the underlying asset.

{a) Right of Use Asset (ROU)

The Company recognises Right of use asset at the commencement date of the lease {ie, the date the
underlying asset s available for use). Right of use asset are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and (mpairment losses, and adjusted for any remeaslirament af lease liabllitles. The cost of Right
of use asset includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direet costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencament date |ess any lease incentives recelved, Right of use asset are
depreciated on a straight-line basls over the sharler of the |eaze term and the estimated useful lives of the
acerr. ac fnllnws:

[Leasehold land 75 Years |

It awnership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
sxareise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated wsing the estimated useful [Ife of the assat, Tha Right
ol use assef are also sulsject to impalrment. Refer to the accounting palicies on Impalrment af non-financial
aseet,

(b) Lease Liabllities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises |ease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including In substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an Index or a rate, and amounts expected to be pald under residual value guarantess. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of @ purchase option reasonably cerfain 1o be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the optlon to terminate, Variable lease paymants that do not depand on an (ndex or @ rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are Incurred (o produce (nventaries) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment accurs, n calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company
uses its Incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the Interest rate implicit in the
lease ix not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amaunt of lease [labllities is Increased to
teflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount af
lease llabilities is remeasured if there Is a modification, a change In the |ease term, a change In the lease
payments (e.q., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an Index or rate used to determing
such lease payments) o a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease lability, IF any and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymants,
if any have been classified as financing cash flows.

(e} Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

The Company applles the short-term lease recognition exemption to [ts short-term leases of property,
machinery and equipment (&, those leases that have & lease term of 12 months or less fram the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of jow-value asset
recognition exemption to leases of office equlpment that are considered 1o be low value, Lease payments on
chart-term leases and leases of low-value asset are recognised as expense on a stralght-line basis over the
lease tarm.

Company as a lessar

Leasas n which the Company dozs not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to awnership
of an asset are classifled as operating leases. Rental income arlsing is accounted for on a stralght-line basls
aver the lease tarms. initial direct casts incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and receghised over the lease term on the same kasis as rental
income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue |n the period In which they are warned.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

v) Other Intangible Assets
{a) Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, If any.

(b) Subseqguent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(c) Amortisation

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line method. The Company
believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amortisation method is reviewed
at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows:

Useful Lives (in years)
Ay s — as estimated by the Campany
Technical Know How 10
Non Compete Fee 5
Customer Relationship 5
¥ - '_h-l"}:-::\
& Vo \\1 :7':"' L‘N\
7] 2
» | MUMBAI *)} =4 o ﬂ'\; 1'
2 O

SIED ACTAL
—

I ; éé-;,- 2




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

wl) Employee Benefits
{(a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short—term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service Is provided. A llability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

{b) Post-Employment Benefits:
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

{i) Provident and Family Pension Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits In
respect of provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees’ eligible salary (cu rrently
12% of employees' eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner (RPEC) which are charged to the Staterment of Profit and Loss as incurred.

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making the
contribution, and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan.
The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense |n the Statement of Profit and Loss.




MNERQOFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior perlods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results In a potential asset for the Company,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ('the asset
ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit |iability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the begin ning of the annual period
to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes In the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
Interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain’) or the gain or loss on
curtallment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards aratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days
to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six
months depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of
service. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable In future based on an Independent
external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using the projected unit credic
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as Other Comprehensive Income.

{c) Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future
encashment/availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an
independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Since the company does not have an unconditional
right to defer the settlement far at least twelve months after the reparting date the obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet of the entity.




NERQFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

vii) Inventories
(a) Measurement of Inventory

The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

{b) Cost of Inventories

The cost of inventaries shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes {other
than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling
and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade
discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production and a
systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting
materials into finished goods.

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the same cost
formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company.

(c) Net realisable value

Net reallsable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value |s
ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to net realisable value |s consistent with the view
that assets should not be carried In excess of amounts expected to be realised from their sale or use.
Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by item. Estimates of net realisable
value of finished goods Is based on the most rellable evidence available at the time the estimates are
made, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the
extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period. Materials and other
supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a
decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished products exceeds net realisable
value, the materials are written down to net realisable value.

Amount of any reversal of write-down of inventories shall be recognised as an expense as when the
EVENL DCCUTrs.

(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property, Plant and
Equipment if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to

7, & Cothe Company and their cost can be measured reliably. Otherwise such items.are classified and
’{"? “recpanised as Inventorv. o e LT
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

viii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash egulvalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes. For an Investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefore, an investment
normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or less from the
date of acquisition. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement cash and cash equivalent includes bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand if any,

i%) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised If, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided
for.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

%) Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

Revenue Is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the
customer which Is usually on dispatch / delivery.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified
in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely
method) based on underlying schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of
credit period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic benefits assaciated
with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenus can be measured
reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability (or group of financlal assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

xl) Taxation
Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised |n Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in Equity or in
Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date,

MAT

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year Is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the
year. The deferred tax assets Is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is possible that
the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e., the period for which MAT
credit is allowed to be carried forward. in the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it
is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The
company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and writes down the assets to the
extent that it is no langer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax

Defarred tax Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax js also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recagnised for:

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects nelther accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

b taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available agalnst which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses Is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, In case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficlent taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be reallsed. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognised /reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of [ts assets and

liabilities.

,m\ﬁq‘ed tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset _current tax
;’f:_/ Jial:-_lﬁﬂps and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 'ﬁa*rﬂ:eju@xable
I|"' o T Iy, \pr on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assefs _qh‘{_ﬁﬁ;?hlis or
|+ | MU "'Lthi:fih_t-;’& assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. L JE))

A




MEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

=ii) Financial Instruments
{a) Recognition and Inltal measurement

Trade recelvables and cdebt securities [ssued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial llabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual terms
of the Instrumsant.

A financial asset or financial liabllity is initally measured at far valug plus, for an jtem not at Falr Value through
Profit apd Lags (FYTPL), transaction eosts that are directly artributable to its acquisition or issue.

{t) Classification and subsequent measurament

Financial assats

On Inltial recognition, a financlal as<et is measurad at

- amortised cost;

~ Fair Value through Other Comprehansive [neome (FYOCH) - debt investment;
~ Fair Value through Other Comprehansive Incame - egquity investment; or

- FWTPL

Financial assets are por reclassified subsaguent ta their initial recognition, except if and in the periad the Company
changes Its business maodel for managing financial assets.

A financial asser s measured at amortised cost if it mests both of the following conditlons and Is not designated as
at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets to callect contractual cash flows; and

- the enntractual tarme of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash MNows that are solely payments of
principal and interest an the principal amount cutstanding.

A debt investment Is measured at FYOCH if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designared as at
FVTPL

_ the assst |5 hald within 2 business model whose abjective s achleved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financlal assets: and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may |rrevocably elect to

present subsequent changes in the Investment's fair value in OC) {designated as FVOCI - eguity investment). This
election i made on an [nvestment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets rot classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! as described above are measured at
FVTPL This Includes all derivative financial assets, On initlal recognition, the Company may Irrevocably designate a
finaniclal asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOC) as at FVTPL if
dning so eliminates ar slgnificantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwlse arise.




MEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL, 2023 TO 31 MARCH, 2024

Financlal assers: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net galns and
josses, Including any Interest, are recognised In Statement of Prafit

Financlal assets at amaortised cost These assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effactive Interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impalrment lasses. Interest ncome, foreign exchange galns and
losses and impairment are recognised In Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any galn ar |oss on derecognition is recognised in Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Debt investments at FYOCI Thase assets are subsequently measured at fair value, [nterest
income under the effective interast mathod, foreign exchange gains
and lasses and |mpairment are recognised In Statemant of Profit and
Loss. Other net gains and |osses are recognised in OCL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOC These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income In Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
imvestment. Other net galns and losses are recagnised In OCI and are
not reciassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Finzncial llabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and galns and losses

Financial llabilities are classifisd as measurad ar amortised cost or FVTPL. A financlal |lability Is classified as at FVTPL If it Is
classified as held far trading, or |t Is a derpvative ar it is designated as such on initlal recognition. Financial llabllities at FVTPL are
meastired at fafr value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised |n Staterment of Profit and Loss,
Other financial labllitles ars subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method. Interest expense and
fareign exchange gains and |osses are racognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is alsa
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

{c) Derecognition
Financlal assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fram the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to recelve the contractwal cash fiows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company nelther transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retaln control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters irlo transactions whersby [t transfers assets recognised on jts balance sheat, but retalns either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial llabllities

The Company derecognises a financial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire.

The Campany also derecognises a finaneial lability when (ts tzrms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. |n this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms |s recagnised at falr value. The difference
between the carrying ameunt of the financial llabllity extingulshed and the new financial labHity with modified terms is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial labllities are offset and the net amount presented In the balance sheet whan, and only when, the

Company currently has a legally enfarceable right to set off the amounts and |t intends eithar to settls them an a ner basis ar
realise the asset and settle the lability simultanecusly,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

xiii Borrowing Cost
The Company capitallses borrowing casts that are directly attributable to the acquisition, constructlon or production of a
guallfying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises other borrowing costs as an expense in the period in
which it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs In connection with the borrowing of
funds Including exchange differences arising from forelgn currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to Interest costs.

A qualifylng asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

xiv} Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders and, If
presented, profit or loss fram continuing operations attributable to those equity holders.

Basic =arnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss atributable to ordinary equity holders (the numerator) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominatar) during the period.

The welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented shall be adjusted
far events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares, that have changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding
withour a corresponding change in resources,

Diluted earnings per share

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders and, If
presentad, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity holders.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders, and the welghted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, If any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares caleulared for
calculating basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the
canversion of &l the dilutive potential ordinary shares Into ordinary shares. Dilutive potential ordinary shares are deemed to have
been converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the period or, If later, the date of the Issue of the potential ordinary




MNEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

xv) Impalrment Loss

i

Impalrment of Financlal Assets

The Campany recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses an:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FYOC|- debt investmants.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit Impaired” when ona or more events that have a detrimental impact
an the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for
recognition of impalrment loss allowance on trade recelvables, The application of simplified approach does not
reqiiire the Company to track changes in eredit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
[Ifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from Its initial recognition.

The gross carrylng amount of a financial asset s written off (sither partially or [n full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficlent cash flows to repay the amounts subject ta
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could stll be subiject to enforcement activities In
order to comply with the Company®s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

An Impairment loss is the amount by which the carrylng amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit excesds
ite recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset ar a cash-generating unlt is the higher of its fair
value less costs of dispasal and Its value Tn use. Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer @ liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Value
in uga |x based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discaunt
rate.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there |s any indication that an asset (s
impaired. In assessing whether there s any Indication that an asset may be Impaired, the Company considers
External as well as Internal Source of Information. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amaunt for the individual asset. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset s less than its
carrying amount, the carrylng amount of the asset |s reduced to Its recoverable amount. An impalfment loss ls
recognised immediately in profit ar loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount in accordance with
another Standard.

if it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the Individual asset, the Campany determines the
recoverahle amount of the cash generating unlt to which the asset belongs (the asset’s cash-generating unith. A
cash-generating unlt is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largaly
independent of the cash Inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The Company recognises (mpairment
loss far a cash-generating unit If, and only If, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit |s less than
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates Impainment loss of cash-generating
upits first to the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating units, if any, and then, to the
other assets of the cash-generating units pro rata on the basie of the carrying amount of each asset |n the cash-
generating unit, These reductions in carrying amounts shall be treated as impalrment losses on Individual
assats and recognised accordingly.

Measurement of fair values

& number of the Companies accounting palicies and disclosures reguire the measurement of fair values, for
btk financial and non-financial assets and |labilities.

Fair values are categarised |nto different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation technlgues as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or |iabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or Habllity, either
directty (i.e. as pricas} or Indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based an observable marke: data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses cbservable market data as far as
possible, I the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hlerarchy, then the fair value measurement Is categorised |n its entirety in the same level of the falr value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recagnises transfers between levels of the falr value hierarchy at the end of the reparting pertad
during which the change has accurred.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

MNote 6: cinl Asse

Unsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits

MNote 7: Non-current assers (Net)

Unseeured and Considered Good
Mon Current Tax Assets (MNet)

Mote B: Other non-current assets

Unsecured and Conziderad Good
Prepaid Expenses

Nute 9: Inventories

Row Materlals

Packing Materials

Work=-in-progress

Finished Goods { Including goods - in transit of RsNil (PY:
Rs.Nil)

Stores and Spares

As ol
31 March, 2024

Amount in Lokhs

As at
31 March, 2023

3.68
1.65

4.63

354

591.82
177.17
3345

T13.41
.58
1,537.43

13.36
13.36

248
148

=
=3 =
b b

631.93
|68.29
45.90

692,53
1.65

1.540.36

Trade Recetvahle and Inventaries ulongwith other current assets ore pledged as seourity for Term loan from Tam Capital Limited

{ Befer Mote 18).

Rs. 19.25 Lakhs (Previous Year: Wil lukhs) amount of inveniories were wrilten ol during the current year, Nil amount of reversal of

write down was nccounted during the current year,

Cost of inventory recognised as un expense during the year is included in Note 253 and 26,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

it PR L vihilis

Unsecured, Conssdered Good
Meczivables - credit impamed

Less; Allowunce fof doubiiil trade receivables

As at
31 March, 2024
1.336,70
100,71
232741
(T0ELT 1)
—A IO

Amout in Lakls

As al
31 March, 2023

307554
$112
31820
(53.32)

T4,

Trate Revelabile al Imventonies alongwitlh other current assets are pledged s secutity for Term Joun from Tuty Capital LimitediRefer Note 18).

Fr termm and cenditions eelatig 10 reksled prrty, Refer Note 33,

Tracle Heceivable are nos-intenest bearing and credit terms are geaerally from 30 o 120 days

As ot 31032004
Ouistunding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Tcw (han 6 & mnnihs iz fX] More than 3 o
rivmnibn 1 year YEATS years yeirs |
(i} Undispueed Trade recervables —considered good 216159 [l - - - 123670 |
() Uniisputed Trade Receivables - which bove significant |
iperease in credit nisk - - - - - -
ki) Undispuies]  Trade Reseivables — credit impaired B 17.62 2630 1.60 - 5.5
{iv ) Dvispaited Trade Receivahles - which have significan
increase in eredit nsk . - & . . =
(1] Dispubed Trnde Receivobies — aredit impaired = 631 1160 1177 151 5519
Tutal 316059 LRI Eril] .37 14.51 11741
As at 31713/2023
Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Tukal
Less than & & munths 1-2 -3 Mare than 3
th 1 yeur yEi year ¥Yeurs
1) Undispuied Trude recenalio — conpidered good 3068 8 1106 - . x 307,94
i) Undispiseyd Trode Recenvables — which bave sijg fiomi
increase i oredit risk - - H x i
{isi} Undispisiesd Trnde Receivables - credil anpaired - .85 - 168 - 14.55
{iv) Dispuied Trade Receivables - whicl have sjmifican
increase b credit nsk - - - - - -
) Dhspaitedd Trade Rocervables - credit impaired . 7.9 5.3 2262 - mm
Tutul ERIUE) 1585 H 30,30 - 3,133.26
As at As
31 March, 1024 31 Mareh, 2013
; Cash and v
Cash on b 36 HIEE]
Blanks Balances A3 E a6
43518 49,45
Al Mageh 2024, the Company hid pvadadile RaNil (11 March 2023: Ba. Nil § of undrrwn commnritied borrowing eilities
1] of
Unieeied and Congidersd Good
Hakaices with lndirect Tax Authonties T 62
Trade Advunces 168 1574
Propad Expenses 1745 1676
[nhker Recaiyoble 14,66 -
148,86 124,500




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Mote 131 8 3 ] As st Asat
31 March, 2024 31 Muarch, 2023
1. Authorised Share Capital 2,004 2,000
Par Vilue per Share {in Rs) 10 1o
Number of Equity Shares lﬂll}l'.lﬂiﬂﬂﬂ 20,000,000
2 (ssuet, Subseribed and Folly Paid 2,000 2,000
Par Valug per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Number of Equity Shares 211, (300, (01 2UU00, Y
3 Diselosure of Shareholding of Promoters
As at 3 March, 2024
Type Promoter No.of shares ut | Chunge During | No.of shares at the end | %% of Totl % change
Name the beglnning of the yeur af the year Shares during the year
lﬁ! VEAr
Fquity share of INR 10 each fully | Kansai Nerolac 20, D06, (060 - 20,060,500 10024 B
puid Pamts Limited
Total 20,400,000 - 200, 0400 0010
As at 31 March, 2023
Type Promuoter Wo.of shares 51 | Chunge During | No.of shares at the end | % of Total % change
Name ihe beginning of the vear af the year Shares during the vear
(he yeur
Equity share of TNR 10 gach fully | Kansa Nerolac 12,0000, (0 B, DN, (K00 200, (400,000 100% BT
paid Praints Limited
Equity share of INR 10 cach fully | Polyiel K.000,004 (8,000,004 i -1 1%
paid Indusitries
Privane
Limited
Totul 2l 0,000 - 20,0000, 000

. Terms/ tights pttached to equity shares

The Company hos issued one clnss of shores, ie equity shares. which enfoys similar rights in respect of voting. paynent of dividend ond
vepayment of capital On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1w receive the residual assets of the Company,
remaining after distribirtion of all preferential amounts i proportion to the number of équity shares held,

5. Details af Shurcholders holding more than 5% of shares:
As al 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
W of the shareholder %a halding Mumber of " holding Number of
Shares Shares

Kaonsni Nerolue Paimis Limiled 1 20.000,(1(K) 100% 20, M. 004

Tkl 10 %% 20, AHIE M0 1% 20, (K000

Kamsni Mernine Paints Limited w100 %5 holding comipany.
fi. Reconcilintion of the number of shores outstanding

Asal Asat

31 Mareh, 2024

31 March, 2023

MWumber of shores ai beginning of the year 20,000,000 21,0600, 00K
lssued during the year e A
Mumber of shares at the end of the year 2,000, 00 200, (kAN
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

Note 14 : Other Equity

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retxined Totul
Earnings
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 (820.60) (B20.60)
Profit'(Loss) for the period (274.00) (274.00)
Other Comprehensive lncome/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Linbility 21.27 21.27
Taotal Comprehensive Income for the period {1,073.33) (1,073.33)
Balunee ns at 31, March 2024 (1.073.33) {1,073.33)
Particulars meeined Total
Earnings
Balance as at | st April, 2022 (826.80) (B26.8(0)
Profiti Loss) for the period 10,09 0.0
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (3.89) (3.89)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (B20.60) (B20.60)
Bulance as at 31, March 2023 (820.60) (820.60)
4 il ‘:I‘ ™
¢ K s - N‘::'::11.
li= ¥ HNaw | = ]
.II. .‘ _'_l'-.l..” it {54, .‘J-’




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 318T MARCH, 2024

Amount in Lakhs
MNaote 15: Borrowings As at Asat
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Secured loan
Term loan from Bank 1, 300,00 468.75
1, 500,00 468.75

For the current maturities of long term borrowings Reter Note 18 “Other Finoneial Linbilities (Current)™.

Term foun was taken from HDPC Bank which carrics avernge interest @ 10.25 % per annum, Loun is repayable affer | veur
moratorium and in 48 months gill 28th November 2024, In 16 quarterly installments along with interest, from the date of loan, Lodn is
secured by following - Primary security is Plant & Equipments at Rudrapur & Dadra location and Letter of Comfort from Kansai
MNerolge Paints Limited for 100% of the twlal facilities sanctioned, The purpose of Joan was for purchose of nssets from Folygel

Industries Private Limited.,

Dwring the year. Term Losn of Rs, 1500 Lakhs is tnken from Tata Capiml Limited which carries interest @ 10.50 % per annum. Loan
is payuble after 2 year moratorium and in 36 months til] 15th March, 2029 in 12 quartely installments along with interest payable
monthly. Term Loan is secured by fullowing primary security s Propery ot Rudnpur & Dadra Nagar Haveli plant with second pari -
passu charge on entire current assees, present and future of the company. The purpose of loan is paying trade payables and capital

expenditure,

WAV

MUMBR;




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT 3151 MARCH, 2024
Amueuni in Lakha

Mot U Deferred Tay Lishilities imet)

A, The mufor eompenents of deferred tny (labilithes) / assets wrisiog oo occonnt of ming differences mre oy follaw:

(Churge) / (Charge) /
Credit Anat Creiit
Ax mi Az af As af
Particitlin y recngilsed bn | 31 March, recognised |1
1 April, 20523 peaitor o 2024 1 April, 2022 prafit or sk 31 Muirch, 2023
for the period for the perivd
Dheferred tax labllitien in relation o
Differenes herween written down valuscapitsl work in progress of fised [67.62) 1648 {51143 (T0.97) 335 (67 52}
asscls as per ilie books of scoosuts imd the Income Tax Ac, 1961
Grrmtuity 1.3 400 16.80 1190 - IR
Fireviaion i Daubitfuel Debits 1483 (ERES 181 1483 - |48%
Deferred ts manets in redation for
Dhftad | crwamces. wnidet Sectioh 40(a) 1) o the Income Tax Acl, 1561 306 (0.0%) 1K (1349} 1665 A
Unsed (0s losses, restricted 1 exien) of defemed (o labilities 3TE3 (33.68) 413 Lpl 2 (20,0) EE k)
MAT Credit Enfi 157 {1571 - - 157 |57
Dferred pax sanets / [Hahilities) (ner) 1.57 {1.5T) - . 157 1.57
Untecognised defernsd tre assets relate prisarily jo ubabsodbed deprecition which can bie set off uyninst toesble profit in the fiture years fram the vear in which they onginaie
As i March As al
31,1024 Murch 31, 2023
Diedisctible vermpornry fifference, unmsed tmy |ogees ol umesed o credits forwish oo deferme oy o s bem recognised are sstributbls bo the following
Unatssirhed Degrecianon {AY T0-21) 14223 18342
Lnibwarhed Deprectation {AY 21-21) 43276 436 TH
L nnbsorhed Bepreciabion {AY 21-13] b2 b | 346 54
Hisdisss Losa | AY 25-22) = LA
As sk A3 ot
31 Mareh, 2024 31 March, 2028
e 17 ¢ Provisism
Provsian for Gieiidy (Rifer None 34) 45,53 1309
4843 43412




ovisian fie Gratuity (Refer Note 34) o
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MEROFIX PRIVATE LINITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2024

Amuant (o Lalhs
As ot As it
31 March, 2024 31 Murch, 2023
Mules |8 Borrowligs
Term Loan . 1,500 (e
Cument manterities of long term bormowings (Refer Mote 15) 468,73 623,00
464,75 2,125.00

Term Loi 15 uken from HOFT Bank Limited which cumes inteeest & 1025 % per annom. Lonn is payable affer 1 vear morotorium and n 48
menths 1l 28th Novernber, 2024 in 16 egiol instillmins plongwith imeres) from thw dete of loan , Loan is sscored. by following primary secunity
is Planl & Equipments al Rudnpur & Dadra Nagar Haveli loentions amd Letter of Comfor from Kansai Nerolne Paints Limied for 100% of il
ficilines sanctioned. The purpose of jean was purchise of assets from Polyged Industries Private Limited.

Wotking Caplinl Term Loan (WCTL) of Hs. 1500 Lakhs j2 laken from Tata Capital Limrited which carries tl=rest @ 1025 % per annum, WCTL
is secured by following primary security s First chorge on fived pasets of Rudagus & Dadea Nogar Haveli plart. S=cond pari - passy charge an
gntire clrent assets, present and future of the company with HDFC tank Letter of comfiort from Kansa Nerolse Paints Limited (KNPL) for
100 of the 1otal facilities sanctioned. This loan is repaid on 151h December, 2023

Note 19:
rade Puvables
Tl Oumstunding diey of Miets Entsrprises mnd Small Bnerpriszs (Refer Nole 18) 136,83 116,38
Total Outstanding dues of crediton other thin Miero Enferpnses and Small Enserprises 2506.12 3450 88

LLTT J6TT.AG
For venms und conditions: refnting fo reinted party, Refer Note 33
As at 31032024
| Particulars Chtstanding for following periods from
du chate of gaynent
Mat Due Less than | year 1-2 years 1-3 years Tatal
(MSKIE 136,65 - = 13663
(HCnhers 2,055 A2 450,50 . - 2.506.12
(i) Dhigpoted dues - MSME = - - . a
{iv) Disputed dives - Others - - - : =
Total 214227 450150 - - LdLTT
As al JTES20623
Particulin Dutstnngding for folkwing perisds from
e dute of payment
Mot Due Less thun | vesr 1-Zvears 3-3 yeurs Total
(HMSME 22658 = . - 128.58
{ [i]0thers 23TH 44 | 6967 144 0.33 3450 88
{1il) Diispoted does - MSME - = = - =
{iv) Disgiuited dues « (biers - - - . =
Total 2, iEE.02 106967 144 033 I 67746
Note 20; Otfer Fingsicial Liabilitles
Trade Diepasits 124.11 131.01
Creduom for Capiind Goods 024 2.68
Interest socrued but not due an barowings 15.20 1578
Payable to Staff 020 (26
139,75 14%,73
Sote 21; Other Current Linbilities
Smtinory. Obligations 4537 444
Addvance. from Custemets 1,241 700 2184
129147 [T
[Nate 22 : Short Term Provisions
Provigini far Lenve Alsenees 14 85 (ENT]
574 4,15
2059 [LE]]
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024
Ampunt in Lakhs

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Sale of Pmducts
Sales 15,779.93 15,052.75
Less: Discounts & Rebates 2.540.82 412.71
Total Sale of Products 13.239.11 14,640.04
Other Ciperating Revenues
Scrap Sales 41.39 4035
41.39 40.35
Revenue from Operations 13.280.50 1468039
Nite 23.1 Disnggregation of revenue from contrnets with customers
The Compuny derives revenue from sale of products from following:
Particulars
I. Revenue from contract with Customers
Sole of products { Transterred at point in time)
Munuficturing
India 13.239.11 14, 640104
(A) 13,239.11 14,640.04
2. Uther Operating Revemae
Scrap Sples 41.39 4038
(B} 41.39 40.35
Total Revenue { A+ () 13,280.50 14,680.39
Major Product Lines
Adhesives, Construetion Chemieals and Sealants 13.239.11 14,640.04
13,239.11 14,640.04
Major Product Lines
Upon Delivery 13,239.11 14,640.04
L3,23%.11 14,640004
Recancilintion of revenue from contract with costomer ns per Ind AS 115;
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the contract price 15,779.93 15,0:52.75
Adjustments mide to contract price on aceount of:
Disewrnts ond Rebates (2.540,82) (412.71)
Other opernting reventic 4139 40.35
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 13,280.50 14.680.3%
23.2 Contract Bulaneces
Contract Assets
I'rude Reccivahles 2,226,770 3,079,494
Contraet Linhilities
Advance from Customers 1,241.70 21.84

Note 2d: Other Ineome

Other Non operating Income
Foreign Exchange Cain (Net) 1.32 .04

7 AR Received . 0.10
o "‘T.m'a:_és‘L Ineome Tix Refund .20 0.21
ol P |
Wos s Profit on-Sdle of Propermy, Plamt & Equipments .16
||| 2 pefy

1.52 6.51




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED J15T MARCH, 2024
Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31 Mareh, 2024 31 Mureh, 2023
Note 25: Caost of Materials Consumed
Raw Material Consumed
Chpening Stock 631.93 762561
Add: Parchase 874132 5,937.22
Less: Closing Stock 591.82 63193
8,7B1.43 10,067.90
Packing Materinl Consumed
Crpening Stock 168.29 14454
Add: Purchose 1,442.49 1 477.54
|ess: Sales 49.93 5429
Less; Closing Stock 177147 168.29
_ Lamied L4
10,165.11 11,567.40
Mute 26; A Grooids mndd Work: ress
Opening Stock
Finished Ciomds 492,53 Gl 6T
Work-in=progress 45,06 45,19
Tid49 Tik, 86
Liss; Closme Swek
Finizhed Goods 71341 69253
Work=in-progress 5345 45.96
Tt 86 TiK 49

2837 i3l.6d)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Note 27: Emplovee Benefits Expense
Salaries nnd Wages 834,10 716,10
Cantribution to Provident and Other Funds KR 2845
Staft Welfare Expense |6.80 11.92
Gratuity Expenses 20,61 mA7
Leave Absences Expenses 3.55 8.36
908.17 T85.00
Note 28: Finance Cost
Interest on Term Loan 199,60 167.24
Interest on Cash Credit - 42,74
Other Finance Cost 6.00 3.00
205,60 212.98
Note 29: Depreciation and Amortisation
Deprecintion on Property, Plont and Equipment 126.27 134.33
Deprecintion on Right of Use Asset 5.01 5.01
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets 190,84 190,84
322.12 330.18
Note 30: Other Expenses
Freight and Forwarding Charges snn 600,56
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 386.93 30,16
Labour Charges 204.86 200.75
Rates and Taxes 1542 231
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 162.07 133.75
Royalty Charges 107.22 115.80
Miscelloneous Expenses 52317 442.25
1,983.39 1,812.88
Note 30.1: ents to Statutory Auditors’
Auditors remuneration excluding taxes ( Included in Miscellaneous Expenses in
Mote no 3000
As Aunditor
Statutory Audil 9.00 B.00
Tax Audit 1.00 1.00
Limited Review 3.00 3.00
Reimbursements of Expenses 0.24 0.20
13.24 12.20




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Note 31 and Commitments
[ssue of Bank Guarantes T.98 7.98
Disputed Claims 27.02 27.02

Note 32: Enrnings Per Equi r

Numeralor:
Profit/(Loss) attributable o Equity Shareholders (274.00) TR
Denominator;
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares (In Lukhs) 200.00 200,00
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in Hs.) (1.37) 005
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 318T MARCH, 2024

Note 33: Related clusures

A relited party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its Financinl Statements

(a) A person o n close member of that person’s family is relited 1o o reporting entity if that person:

(1) bt control or joint control of the reporting entity,

(1) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(i1} is o member of the key mansgement personnel of the reporting entity of of & parent of the reporting entity.

(h) An entity s relnted (o 2 reporting eatity if ooy of the followng conditions applies:

1) The entity ond the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and lellow subsidiary is related to the
others),

{ii) One entily is an associate or joint venture of the ather entity (or an ussoclate or joint venture of a member ofa group of which the other entity is o
member)

{11} Both entities are joint venmares of the same third puarty.

{iv) e entity is @ joint venture of o third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity,

{¥) The entily is 0 post-employment henefit plan for the beaefit of employees of either the neporting entity or dn cutity related to the reporting entity. [F
the reporting entity {8 itsclf such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related o the reporting entity.

ivi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by & person identified in (a),

{vil) A person identified in (n)ii) has significent influence over the entity or is a member of the key munagement personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

{viii} The entity, ar any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personrel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity,

A reluted party ransaction is & trensfer of resources; servives or obligations between o reporting entity and n related party, regardiess of whether

price is charged

Partics where control exist

Uttimate Holding Company

- Kanszi Paint Co. Limited (Jopan)
Holding Compnny

- Kansal Nerolse Paomts Limited

Uther reloted parties with whom transsctions have tuken plice during the period:

Emities with Significont Influence
- Polypel Industries Private Limited {Lipio 30 March, 2023}

Koy Management Personnel

- Mir. Praghant Poi, Non Exeeutive Director

- Mr. Juson Gonsalves, Noa Executive Dircctor

- Mir. Abhtjit Natoo, Non Executive Director

- Mr. Parng Ok, Chiefl Finaneial Officer upto 27 October, 2022

- Mr. Anil Phstongare Chiel Operating Officer upto 2%th Februury 2024
- Mr, Dileep Pandita Chield Executive Officer woe.£3181 Jonuary 2024
- Mr. Prushant Murkar Chief Financinl Officer upro 315t October 2023
- s, Rukmim Subramunisn, Company Secretary

I
%
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2024

Miie 33: Related Party Disc

Disclosure of ransactions with relnted parties

Amount in Lakhs

Sr Moo | Transactions Asal Asal
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
1 Sale of finished poods
- Kanl Neroloe Paints Limited 2.283.26 2.828.03
2 Purchase of Raw materials 44,44 2
- Kansai Nerolae Prints [Lomted
3 Rovaliy Charges
- Kansat Nerolae Paints | imited 107,22 115.80
4 Advance recelved against sale of goods
- Kansai Nerolae Pamnts Limited 1,500,040 -
5 Relmbursement of Expenses
= Parag Cak - 1.78
- Prashant Murkar 0.B% 10.96
< Amnil Phalungare 15.86 110
- Dileep Pandit L2z -
b Hemuneration
Purig Ok (Remoneration & paid by Kensai Neroloe Panis Limited and the sume is - 12:47
reimbursed by Company as Depuntion Charges)
Prashont Murkar ( Remunieration s paid by kansal Merolae Points Limited and the 749 .03
surme 5 retmbursed by Company as Deputation Charges)
= Amnil Phatangare A4 85 414y

= As the future lishilites for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on en actuarial valustion hasis {or the Company as a whole, the smouni
petisinimg to individual is not ascerminable and therefore not included ahove.

Disclosure of Balances with related purties

Amount In Lakhs

Sr. Moo |Balunces As at Asat
31 March, 2024 31 Mareh, 2023

T Receivable

- Knnsai Neroloe Paints Timited - 105493
8 Advances receivahle

- Polygel Industries Provate Limited - LA
3 Pavaliles

= Kaiitsni Merolae Puints Limied 21.75 12780
9 Advance Pavables

= kamsm Nerolne Puints | imited 1,214.44 -

The transeenons with reluted parties are made on ferms equivalent to thase that previil in aom's length transactions. This assessment &5 undertnken in
eneh fineneinl period throngh examming the finaneinl position of the related party ond the market in which the related party operates. Outstinding
halomoes ns ot 3] March, 2024 are unsecured snd settlement vecurs in cash,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

Note 34: Emploves Benefits

A Defined Contnbution Plans:

Amouni in Lakhs

Contribution 1o defined contribution plan, recognised in the Stitement of Prafit and Loss under Compeny”s
Contrihution o Provident Fund in Employee Benefits Expenses for the period is as under:

PParticulars As il Asal

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Emplover's contribution to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner 3111 2843

B Defined Benefit Plans:
i, Gratuity

The following tables set aut the fiunded of the gratuity pluns and the amount recognised in the Company Financial Statements

as ar 3 st March, 2023 and 3151 March, 2024

Particulars Asut As il

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Deefined benefit ohligntion al ihe beginning 47.24 3318
Cutrenl service cost 17.06 18.46
[nierest Expense 155 1.71
Benefit povments from pion nssals - -
Remensirements-Due 1o Finoneial Assumplions (.11 11.53
Remensurements-Die o Expereience Adjusiments (12.47) (7.65)
[Rermepsurements- notuorinl goins/(losses) - -
[efined henelit oblizntion at year end 5127 4724

Components af Defined Benehit Cost recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Employee Benelit Expenses:

Particulars

As al
31 March, 2024

As i
31 Mareh, 2023

Currem Service Cost

Meet Inmerest Ciost

Defined Benetit Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and
|oss

17.06
333

20.61

18.46
1.71

2017

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Sintement of Other Comprehensive Income:

Partloul Asat Asat
il 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Actusriil (gains) | losses on Defined Benefit Obligation {16.58) 3.489

Defined Benefit Cost recogmsed in the Stotement of Other
Comprehensive Tncome (16.58) 3.89
The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost are set oul helow:

- Asoat Asut
i 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Dhiscount Rate T7.26% T.51%
Salary Escaluticn B.00%% 9.00%
Weighted average durntion of the defined benefit obligation
{vears) 11040 | 1.48




Sensitivity Analvsis:

Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withidrawsl Rate are significunt sctianol assumptions. The change in
the Present Value of Defined Betiefit Obligation for o change of 100 Hasis Points from the assumed assumption is

piven below:
Seennrio AS S e
31 Murch, 2024 31 March, 2023

Tnder Base Scenano L2y 4724

Salory Escalation - Up by 1% 3684 5248

Salory Escalation - Down hy 1% 46 45 42.70

Withdrawal Rates - Lip by 1% 50.70 46.19

Withdrawal Rates - Down by 1% 31.88 4837

Discount Rates - Up by 1% 456.58 42.78

Dhiscount Rates - Down by 1% 56.80 5249

Mortality Rates - Up by 10% 51.26 47.22

Mortality Rates - Down hy 10%6 51.27 47.26

Expected Rate of Rewm on Planned Assel 7.26% 7.51%

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

Muortality Tuble As at Asat
373142024 33172023
Adtained Age Male Female Male Femule

20 ,09% 0.09% 0.09% 0.09%
5 {1.09% 10.09% 0.09% 0,09
an 0, 10%, 0. 10% 0.1 (10t
35 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.12%
4l D17% 0.17% 0.17% 0,1 ™a
45 .26% .26% 0.26% 0. 26%%
50 0, 44%, 0.44% 1 44% 0.44%
35 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0. 75%
60 1.13% 1.12% 1.12% 1.1 2%

(. Compensated Absences

Amoum of Rs 8,55 Lokhs ( PY 22-23 Re. 8,36 Lakhs ) hos been recognised in the stntement of profit and loss os un expense for compensated absences




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Jole 35: it [i

The Management Comimittee of the Company, approved by the Board of Directors performs the function of allotment of resources und
assessment of performanee of the Company. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their meetings and level of finality of
their decisions, the Company has identified that Chief Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Management
Committee. The fnancinl information presented 1o the Monagement Committee in the context of results and for the purpases of approving the
annual operating plan is on n consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Management Commitlee monitors the husiness

uctivity s o single business segment viz. Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealunts, and the sales substuntially being in the domestic
minrket, the financial sttement are reflective of the information required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Scgments™.

Revenue from one customer amounted to TNR 2,283.26 Lakhs (31 Murch 2023 INR 2,828.03 Lakhs), arising from sales of Adhesives,

Construction Chemicals and Sealants.
Vs
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

A, Catepories of Finnnvial Instrument

The following table shows the camying sinounts and fir values of financial assets and financial lisbilities, including their levels in the fair value
hiemrchy
Amount in Lakhs

Asal Fair Value Falr Yulue Amortised Cost
31 March, 2024 through Frofit through Ciher

and Loss Comprehensive

Income

Finuncinl Assets
Security deposit - - 163
Trade Receivables - - 2225
Cash ond Cush Equivalent - - 435,18

Financial Linbilitles

Long Term Borrowings - - 1.500.00
Shart Term Bormowinjzs - - 68 TS
Trade Payables . - 264277
Other Current Finaneial Linhilities - - 139.75
As nt Falr Valoe Fair Value Amortised Cost
31 March, 2023 through Profit  through (ither

nnd Loss Comprehensive

Income

Finamcinl Assets
Security deposit - . 13.36
Trade Receivables - - 3,079 94
Cpsh and Cash Equivalent B - f949
Fioamelal Liahilities
Long Term Borrnwings - - 468 TS
Shor Term Bomowngs . - 2.125.00
Trade Puyables - - 167748
Dther Cument Financuil Liabilites - - 14973

B. Fulr Yalue Hlerarchy

The mimugement tssessed the curying vildue of financial nssets and luhilities carried ot “amortised cost” spproximate their fisir value largely due
1o the short-lerm maturities of these nsiruments

The following table provides the fulr value measurement hierarchy of the Company's nesets and ihilities

Falr value measurement using

As b Quoted prices in Significani Significant
31 March, 2024 petive murkets  observable inputs  umobservible
ingnils
(Level 1) {Level 2) iLevel 3)
Assedy carried ot amortised cost
Security deposit B - 165
I'mude Receivables - - 213870
Cash und Chsh Eguivalent - - 43518
[ hahilities carried at amortised cost
Long Term Borrowinits . - 1500000
Short Term Rorrowings - - 46875
Trade Poyables - . 264077
Other Current Fisunom! Linbilites . - 139,75
Fair value measurement using
Anat Quoted prices in Significant Significant
31 March, 2023 active murkets  observable inputs  unohservable
Inpuis
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Laevel 3)
Assets carried ot amortised cost
Securty depuogit - . 1338
Trade Receivahles 7 - - - 307964
Cash and Cash Equivalent - - 849
Liabilities earried ot amortlsed cost
Long Term Bormowings - 46875
Short Term Borowings - 2,125,060
Trade Payabloy - 157746
Other Carrent Financinl | iahilities - s 145,73
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Mote 37; Finaneiol Risk Managemenl

The Company’s principal fnancial labilities comprise short term lowns and borrowings, trade pavables and other payables, The main purpose ol these
financinl lishilitics & 1o finance the Company’s operations and to provide guaranices (o support its operations. The Compiny’s principal finnncinl nssets
inelude [nans to emplovees, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash cquivalents that derive directly from 1ts operntions.

The Company s exposed o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Campany’s finanefal risk activities are governed by appropriste policies und
procedures and financial risks are jdentified, messured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Company's
financial sk menagement policics are sct us per the guldelines.

Iy Market Risk

Narke! risk is the risk that the fir value of futere cash flows of o finoncinl instrument will Huchiste becaiise of changes in market prices, Murker price
comprises three types of risks, interest rate risk, correney sisk and other price risk, such as ewquity price risk and commodity price risk, The objective off
markel risk marigement is 1o manage and contral marketrisk exposures within accepluble parameters, while optimuzing the retum. Tn respect of monelaty
assets mnd lnbilitics denominated in forcign curreneies, the Compuny’s policy is to ensune that its net exposure & kepl 10 4n necepinble level,

i} Foreign Currency Risk
Forcizn currency risk is the risk thal the Miir value or future cash fows of an exposure will Quctuate because of changes in forcign exchange mtes, The
Compiy’s exposure to the forelgn currency risk arising mainly due fo its eperating activities and thies the rigk of changey in foreign exchange mtes relates
primsariby to trade pavahles,

The Company has no exposure (o foreign cumency risk

i) Credit Risk
Credit Risk (s the risk of finametil loss o the Company IF o custcemer or counterparty to o {inancial instrument finils to mest its contractoal oblizutions.
und arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans . The carmying smounts of finsneinl assets represent the muximum
credit risk exposure,

Trade Receivables

The Company’s exposure fo eredit risk i5 influenced mainly by the individual charscteristics of each eustomer. The Risk Menagement Commitiee has
estublished a credit policy under which ench new customer is analysed ndividually for creditworthiness hefore the Compamy’s standard payment and
delivery terms und conditinns are offered. The Campany’s review includes finanzinl statements, eredit agency mformation, indusiry information aod in
sarfie cises hank references, Sales limits nre estublished for ench customer and reviewed constuntly. Any sules exceeding those limuits resquire approval Lrom
the monigement

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits
Credit ricks from halances with banks and finineial thstitutions is managed by the Company's Treasury Department in aceordunce with the Company’s

policy, lnvestments of surplus funds are misde only with approved counterparntics and withirt eredit limiis nssigned (o ench counterpaity. The limits are set o
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate finuncinl boss through connterparty’s potential fuilure 0 make puymerdts.

iv) Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk the risk that the Company will enceunter difficulty in meeting the obligations associuted with its finonez) linbilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another fimancial ssset. The Company's approsch to mansging liquidity is w ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufticient lguidin
to meet iis [abilities when they are die, under hoth normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses of risking durnsge tw the

Thie tuble below sumemurises the mamrity profile of the Compuny™s finaniial lobilities:
Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended 31 Murch, 2024 | Year Ended O Uptos |3 monthsto| 6 months | | year fo | J years and Total
Demand | 3months | & months | tol year | 3 years ahave
Batrowings I 1032024 - 156.25 156.25 15625 S00.00 1,000.00 1,968 75
31032023 - 156,25 15628 1 812,50 46875 2.5531.75
Trade Payables 311032024 - 164277 - - - - 2277
31032023 167746 3 6T7.46
Cdher Financial Linhilities Jlasan2d 13975 - - - - - 139,75
310372023 149,73 - - - - 144,73
Total JL0A2024 138.75 2,799.02 156.25 156,25 500,00 0000 4,751.27
31032023 149,73 [ 383371 156.25 | 161250 408,75 - {42094
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Note 38: Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the period 2023-24, to the extent

the Compuny has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Act.

Amuiint in Lakhs

Particulars

Asml

31 March, 2024

As a1
31 March, 2023

n The principal amout and the interest due thereon remulning unpaid to amy supplier & ot the end of cach
pecounting period,
— Principal amount due o micro and small enterprises

— Interest due on above

b, ‘The amount of interest paid by the buver in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the
pmounts of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach acoounting period.

¢ The amaint of interest due and payable for the period of delay in mitking pityment (which have heen paid but
beyond the appuinted day during the period) but without ndding the imtenest specified under MSMED Act, 2008,

4 The wmount of interest acomied mid remaining unpeid it the end of each accounting period.

= ‘The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in he succeeding pernds, until such date when
the imterest dues as ahove are actually paid to the smoll enterprise for the purpose of disallowance a8 o deduetible
expenditure under Seetion 25 of MSMED Act, 2006

136.65

226,58




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2024

Amount in Lakhs
MNote 39: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all ather equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditivns and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The current capital structure of the Company
is equity based with financing through long term borrowings,

As at As ail
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Long Term Borrowings including Current Maturities 1,968.75 1,093.75
Short Term Borrowings - 1,300.00
Less: Cush and Cash Equivalents 435.18 8949
Net debt 1,533.57 2.504.26
Equity 926.67 1,179.40
Total capital 926.67 1,179.40
Capital and net debt 2.460.23 3,683.66
Gearing rafio 62% 68 %

There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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Note 40 - Ratlo Analysis und its Elements

Particulars Numerator Denaminator | 30 March, 2024 [ 31 March, 2023 i Varinee Reasun for Varinsce
Current Ratio Currient Assets Current Lishilities 1.06 089 20% Repavment of short torm
loan fram Tatw Capilsd Lid
hims Emiproved ratio
Delit Equity Totl Debt Shareholdors x12 20 3%
Equity
Debit Service Coverage Hatla Eamings for debt Dbt sorvice 005 046 -BE2N Repavment of shord l2rm
sefvice = Ned Inferest & Lease Joan Trom Teta Copdial Lid
peofit after taxes + | Poyments + Tas |mproved mtio
Mi-cash Principal
b EAT Repiy
ROFE et profit alier Avomge -26,02% [.86% -3133% it |osses are incrensed
1aes Sharcholders mgatisl profit of previous
equity yeir
Inventory Turmover Cosd of goods sold | Averame Inventory f5% 707 A%
Trode Receivibles Turnover M credit sales = | Averuge Trode 459 53 -1.3%
Giross credi siles - [Receivahle
sales retum
Traike Puvables Tomover Mel cedit Average Trde 385 3.76 4%
purchases = Gross | Payables
credit purchases -
purchase reium
Net Caplial Tarnover Metsales - Total | Working eapital = (61.45) {11.78) AN 4% Diegrowth i the not sales s
sales - sales roturn | Curoent assets - wiell s reducticn i shir
Current linhilitias jerm bormwiing campied
10 PrevinLs year
Net Profit patlo Met profit Mat Sales -207% 007 -3029% M| hisses are sncremsed
|gminst profit of proviows
venr
Return on Capltal Employed Enttiings before | Cnpital Employed -1 36% 5.81% -140.0% et Josies ure increased
interest ond tooes |~ Tangihie Met apainst profil of previous
Woorth + Tolal year
Dl = Deferred
Tax Liahility
Heturt an lnvestment Interest (Finanee | IHvestmet NA NA M
Ineome] |

ALIABAI

s | MY
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Note 41: Other Stututory Information

(1) The Compuny does not hive any Benami property, where any proceeding his been initiated or peniding against the compay for holding any Benaml

properiy.
{{11The Complny diss not have any transactions with companies struck ol

{1} The Company does nob kave any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
{iv)The Company hes not traded or invested in Cryplo cureney or Virunl Currency during the Tinumeial year.
{%)The Compény has not advanced or louned or invested funds to any other persan(s) ar entitv(es), including foreign entities (Intermed fanesh with the
understnding that the Intermediary shall:

(udirectly or indirectly lend or mvest in other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the compny (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(bipravide any guarnntee, sequrity of the like to or on hehalf of the Ulrimate Beneficiuries
{vi)The Company hos nol reccived any fund from any personds) or entity(ies), ineluding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undesstanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(t)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in ony manner whalsoever by of on behall ol the Funding Party (Ultimate
Heneticiaries) or

(hiprovide ooy guarantee, soeurity of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(il The Company fas not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of aceoimts that has becd surrendered or disclosed as income during
the vear in the tux sssessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such us, search or survey or any ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

{vii1) The Company has used secounting software for mainiuining its hooks ol account which hus a fenture of recording sudit troil (edit log) Mcility and
the sume has operated theoughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail fentire is not enihled at the
dutnhase level insofir s it relates to Focus accounting software. Further no tnstarce of audit traf] festure being tampered with was noted in respect of
other softwire,

Note 42: Comparative Figures for Previous Period

Previons vear figures are regrouped mnd recast wherever necessary io mike Hheir comparable with the feures of 'I‘.hl.: gurrend yenr
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